
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brandy Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

September 10, 2025 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



   Brandy Creek  
  Community Development District 
  475 West Town Place 
  Suite 114  
  St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
  District Website: www.BrandyCreekCDD.com 
   

 
September 3, 2025 
 
Board of Supervisors 
Brandy Creek Community Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Brandy Creek Community Development District Meeting is scheduled for 
Wednesday, September 10, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Johns Creek Phase 2 Amenity 
Center, 251 Huffner Hill Circle, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Public Comment 
 
 III. Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2025, Meeting 
 
 IV. Consideration of Proposals: (will be sent under separate cover) 
  A.  Stormwater Pond Inspection Report 
 
  B.   Sand Volleyball Court 
 
  C.  Phase 2 Entrance Pergola Repair  
 
 V. Ratification of Agreements: 
  A.  The Lake Doctors for Aquatic Maintenance 
 
  B. C Buss Enterprises for Pool Refinishing Services 
 
 VI. Discussion Items: 
  A. Pool Finish and Tile Colors 
 
  B. 10-Year Capital Outlook 
 
 VII. Other Business 
 

http://www.brandycreekcdd.com/


 VIII. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney  
  
  B. Engineer  
  
  C. Manager – Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 CDD Goals and Objectives 
   
  D. Operations Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Yellowstone Report 
 
   3. Lake Doctors Report 
 
  E. Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
    
        2.   Sheriff’s Office Report 
 
 IX.  Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 X. Financial Reports  
  A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement as of July 31, 2025 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Approval of Check Registers 
 
 XI. Next Scheduled Meeting – November 12, 2025, at 6:30 p.m. at Phase 2 Amenity 

Center 
 
 XII. Adjournment 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



MINUTES OF MEETING 
BRANDY CREEK  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Brandy Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, July 9, 2025 at 6:30 p.m. at the Johns Creek 

Phase 2 Amenity Center, 251 Huffner Hill Circle, St. Augustine, FL 32092. 

 
 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
 Meredith Payne Chairman 
 Barbara Little by phone Vice Chairperson 
 Shawn Jolly Supervisor 
 Thomas Metych Supervisor 
 Clarence Blalock Supervisor 
 
 
 Also present were: 
 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Mike Eckert District Counsel  
 Matt Biagetti GMS 
 Dan Fagen Vesta/Amenity Services Group 
 Jim Masters Vesta/Amenity Services Group 
 Jennifer Meadows Vesta/Amenity Services Group 
 Jason Campbell Yellowstone 
 Residents 
 

 The following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken at the July 9, 2025 

Brandy Creek Community Development District’s Board of Supervisors Meeting.  

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Payne called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Mr. Payne, Mr. Jolly, Mr. Blalock and 

Mr. Metych were present in person and Ms. Little was present by phone.  

 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Public Comment 

There being no comments, the next item followed. 

 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the Minutes of the May 7, 
2025 Meeting 

Mr. Payne pointed out on Page 6, during the discussion on the capital reserves, where the 

assessment increased by $17 per unit or a $75,000 hit, there was confusion. This statement would 

be stricken from the final minutes as it did not make sense. However, there were some actions 

that needed to be taken by the engineer and staff. A resolution was adopted to donate some 

equipment and asked if this was undertaken. Mr. Masters did not donate it, because he had not 

called the Fire Department, but would contact them this week. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Blalock with all in 
favor the Minutes of the May 7, 2025 Meeting were approved as 
amended. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposal for 
Stormwater Pond Inspection Report 

The item was tabled as the engineer was not present. 

 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Introduction of Yellowstone Account 
Manager, Jason Campbell 

Mr. Master introduced Mr. Jason Campbell, the new Yellowstone Account Manager. He 

started a week before the last CDD meeting and lived in Gainesville, having been in the business 

for many years. The flower rotation that they had at the tip of Nature Walk Parkway on CR 2210, 

was run over by someone who drove into the island, wiping out half of the flowers, which 

Yellowstone replaced at no charge. Mr. Campbell pointed out that he graduated at the University 

of Florida in management of plant soils, having been in the industry for 36 years. This 

community was in good shape. His staff was working on trying to maintain the tree canopies, 

especially near the sidewalks and around the Amenity Center. The seasonal colors were just put 

into place. They were doing well in the middle of the drought, as they had good irrigation. 

However, there was turf that was in a state of decline on Nature Walk Parkway. They discussed 

options as to whether or not they needed to replace the turf with more shade tolerant turf or plant 

material, which would be more long term and strongly recommended filling in those areas with 

some nutrient rich top soil, to promote growth in that dense canopy. There were more shade 

tolerant plants than shade tolerant turf grasses. The shade tolerant turf grasses were not grown in 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 3 

as much as typical St. Augustine, so the price per pallet was significantly more expensive. They 

would need a truckload of about 22 pallets to fill those areas and Mr. Campbell was working 

with some pricing from some vendors who owned farms, in order to purchase it wholesale. In 

either case, it would probably cost between $16,000 and $23,000 to have these areas sodded. To 

bid those areas out, would be in the $15,000 to $19,000 range. 

Mr. Payne asked if there were any alternatives other than the grass and how close to the 

root system, they needed to get. Mr. Campbell indicated that areas next to the trunk were not 

included in the square footage, as the nutrients were depleted and the root systems were thick 

and vibrant, which the turf grasses could not compete with. The third option would be to leave it 

alone, as it would not look worse than it looked right now. It was thin Bermuda grass, which was 

a warm season grass that needed sunlight to thrive underneath the dense canopy. Mr. Payne 

questioned Mr. Campbell’s thoughts on the community in terms of the aesthetics and upkeep of 

the grass. Mr. Campbell pointed out that the community was well maintained, but some of the 

plant material was overdone in some areas, as it encroached sidewalks, which was something 

that they needed to do something about in the long term. Mr. Masters approved a proposal to 

replace cord grasses that align Johns Creek Parkway, which significantly enhanced it, with the 

mulch, which in his opinion, was money well spent. Other than that, there was some dated and 

declining plant material, but for the most part, their fertilization program had been phenomenal. 

Mr. Payne looked forward to working with Mr. Campbell and receiving the proposals, especially 

to enhance Nature Walk Parkway, which has been an eyesore. Mr. Masters pointed out that there 

were eight areas that had dirt and roots that looked bad, but only a couple of residents 

complained about it. One resident who complained, spoke about the grasses in Phase 1, where 

there was St. Augustine, which was a natural grass, that would always overtake the area. There 

were a few times during the year, where the St. Augustine was green and the Bahia was brown. It 

was not a beautiful look, but it would take thousands of dollars to correct. 

Mr. Jolly asked if they could use ivy as ground cover, which grows in thick. Mr. 

Campbell indicated that it would be hard to compete with any of the plantings, as there were 

spaces where the tree was going to be without dominant species. However, there were options of 

ivy and Jasmine, but there were going to be issues with the climate and it would be a constant 

battle of knocking it down, which would scar the base of the tree. There were several options and 

Mr. Campbell was getting someone from their design team to come onsite on July 28th, to walk 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 4 

the area and take soil samples. Bahia, Bermuda and St. Augustine, grow at different rates. Some 

were dormant in the Winter, others stayed green in the Winter and some grow at a much faster 

rate than the Bermuda. When he provided the options, Mr. Campbell would provide some 2D 

and 3D images of the area, of what would look the best, last the longest and enhance the 

community. Mr. Payne pointed out that the Board was open to look at many options. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Consideration of Proposals for Pond 
Fountains Phase 1 

Mr. Payne reported that the pond fountain at Phase 1 behind the pool, which was 15 years 

old, had stopped working. Mr. Masters indicated that the fountain was in this location, for almost 

eight years. It stopped working one time, since he had been here and had called Lake Doctors to 

come out, as they originally installed it. In that case, a wire had gotten burned, which they 

repaired at no charge. However, in this case, Lake Doctors deemed that the Phase 1 fountain 

lived its life and needed to be replaced and provided the following options: Option 1 was to do 

nothing and Option 2 was to do the basics, for example, installing a new 5 horsepower motor 

with no lights at a cost $10,000. It would come with a one-year warranty. There was another 

proposal from Innovative Fountain for the same type of fountain in the amount of $6,415. Ms. 

Little asked if there were currently lights on the fountain. Mr. Masters confirmed there were 

currently no lights. In addition, Lake Doctors proposed replacing the fountain with a spider arch 

or trellis fountain. Replacing the motor, installing lights and having a spider arch nozzle, would 

cost $14,408 and include a three-year motor warranty and three-year light warranty. 

Alternatively, Lake Doctors could install a trellis fountain with colored lights and provide a five-

year motor warranty and three-year light warranty for $17,168. Innovative Fountain proposed a 

fountain with a three-horsepower motor with adjustable nozzles and white lights and a five-year 

pump motor warranty and two-year light warranty in the amount of $15,156. For an additional 

$588, the white lights could be switched out for colored lights. All of the proposals for colored 

lights, come with a remote, to change the colors. 

Mr. Payne questioned whether the Board wanted to replace the fountain. Ms. Little 

wanted to replace it. Mr. Blalock agreed. Mr. Jolly questioned whether the current fountain had 

lights. Mr. Masters believed at one time there were white lights on the fountain, but they have 

not worked since he had been involved with the CDD. Mr. Jolly pointed out according to Lake 

Doctors, the lights did not work. Mr. Jolly asked if they could add lights to Option 1 of the 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 5 

Innovative Fountain proposal. Mr. Masters believed that they could but did not recall the cost. 

Mr. Payne questioned the durability of the motor. Mr. Masters did not know; however, 

Innovative Fountain indicated that Aqua Control was a great motor, but there would be problems 

with it every year and recommended the Casco motor, as it had significantly less maintenance. 

Innovative Fountain had installed many fountains throughout Northeast Florida and performed 

pump and motor work on pools. Mr. Jolly pointed out according to ChatGPT, both motors were 

reliable, but Casco had replaceable parts and was easy to service. Mr. Payne questioned whether 

they needed a 3 or 5 horsepower motor. Mr. Masters indicated that Innovative Fountain felt that 

the 3-horsepower motor was more than sufficient. Mr. Payne asked if the price would decrease in 

the first proposal, if they wanted a 3-horsepower motor with lights. Mr. Masters would find out 

why one proposal was for a 5-horsepower fountain and the other was for a 3-horsepower 

fountain and the cost for lights. Mr. Payne wanted to get more bang for their buck and having 

something durable with a five-year warranty, was appealing.  

Mr. Metych did not like having a one-year warranty and preferred having a three- or five-

year warranty. Mr. Jolly favored the proposal from Lake Doctors over Innovative Fountain and 

not having colored lights. Ms. Little was in favor of having a five-year warranty and colored 

lights. Mr. Blalock questioned why they could not add lights to Option 1 of Innovative Fountain 

proposal. Mr. Masters felt that there was insufficient information to make a decision and wanted 

to contact Innovative Fountain tomorrow to ask these specific questions. There was Board 

consensus for Mr. Masters to speak to Innovative Fountain on providing a three-to-five-year 

warranty on Option 1. Mr. Metych recalled the proposal including fountain service of $1,150, if 

they could not access a conduit and asked if this would be removed, if a conduit was available. 

Mr. Masters replied affirmatively. Mr. Payne was in favor of Innovative Fountain proposal for a 

fountain with colored lights in the $14,700 range, a five-year warranty on the motor and three-

year warranty on the lights and Mr. Masters going back to them to ask the questions regarding 

the warranty and color variation. Mr. Payne questioned whether to approve this expenditure now 

or waiting until Mr. Masters spoke to Innovative Fountain. Mr. Blalock was in favor of 

approving Option 2, subject to Mr. Masters getting his questions answered, as Option 1 only had 

a one-year warranty. Ms. Little agreed. Mr. Jolly would like to find out if there was a conduit, as 

the amount would decrease to $13,244 and the cost for interchangeable nozzles. 

 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 6 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Jolly with all in favor 
Option 2 of the proposal with Innovation Fountain for a pond 
fountain in Phase 1 in an amount not-to-exceed $15,000, subject to 
Mr. Masters speaking to Innovative Fountain on providing a three-
to-five-year warranty on Option 1 and reduction on cost if there 
was a conduit was approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion of Phase 2 Pool Remarciting 
Process  

Mr. Masters recalled that the Phase 2 pool had the original marcite and they had been 

doing patches on the bottom of the pool for several years. The pool was built in 2013 and they 

typically get 10 to 12 years on a commercial pool, but they were at the point of where it needed 

to be remarcited. In talking to a couple of vendors, the price would be between $115,000 and 

$135,000. He wanted the Board to think about it and would get some proposals for the next 

meeting from several vendors, as it was stable for a few years, but there were new areas this 

year. The concern was that they were going into the season and would have to shut the pool 

down. Mr. Payne indicated that this item would be paid out of the capital reserve and questioned 

how long it would last. Mr. Masters anticipated it lasting a minimum of 12 years, if they choose 

the right vendor and use the right finish. Mr. Payne pointed out that this was the action that they 

had to take in order to maintain the community; two pools and two Amenity Centers. Mr. 

Masters believed that the Phase 1 pool was a year or two behind this one. There was Board 

consensus for Mr. Masters to obtain proposals for the Board’s review at the next meeting. Mr. 

Blalock asked if Mr. Masters could prepare a 10 or 15 plan on items that needed to be addressed. 

Mr. Masters had one for the next five to seven years and would amend it. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of Fiscal Year 2024 Audit 
Report  

Mr. Oliver stated as a unit of government, the CDD was required to have an annual audit 

performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA) firm, selected through the 

Request for Proposals (RFP) process by the Board of Supervisors, as required by Chapter 118 of 

the Florida Statutes. The Fiscal Year 2024 audit was included in the agenda package, which was 

prepared by Berger, Toombs, Elam, Gaines & Frank and filed by the June 30th deadline. It was a 

clean audit, as there were no current or prior year findings or recommendations, no deficiencies 

in internal controls, the District was not in a state of financial emergency and the financial 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 7 

records were in accordance with the standards for the Auditor General of the State of Florida. 

There was a section on the long-term debt for the Series 2013 and 2015 special assessment 

refunding bonds, with the 2013 bonds maturing in 2033 and the 2015 bonds maturing in 2036. 

Today, he sent an email to the Investment Consultant, asking how the conditions looked for a 

refunding of both bonds, as it would provide some cash for the projects that the District was 

undertaking. Mr. Payne asked if it would change the timing. Mr. Oliver confirmed that it would 

not extend the time unless they had new money bonds. Mr. Payne recalled that the bonds were 

refinanced previously and the District received some funds. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Metych with all in 
favor the Fiscal Year 2024 audit was accepted. 

 

 The meeting was recessed at 7:24 p.m. 

 The meeting was reconvened at 7:29 p.m. 

 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Fiscal Year 2026 Budget 
A. Overview of Budget  
Mr. Oliver recalled at the May 7th meeting, the Board approved the budget for Fiscal 

Year 2026, which met the requirement for the Florida Statutes to approve the budget by June 

15th. Mailed notices were sent, informing residents of the assessment increase and this budget 

hearing, on June 9th and a notice was published in the St. Augustine Record. Only five letters 

being returned. The reason for the increase was due to not having any carry forward surplus to 

subsidize the budget. In addition, there was a $64,000 increase: $24,000 due to having no carry 

forward surplus. There was also an increase of $5,400 for administrative expenses, for a 3.8% 

increase. On the field side, the operation and maintenance (O&M) expenses to fund the Amenity 

Center, as well as the field operations, increased from $704,000 to $742,000, for an increase of 

$38,000 or 5.38%. There were no line items that stand out as major increases, other than the 

general facility maintenance, which increased from $30,000 to $50,000, as this was an aging 

community. The total increase of all expenditures was 5.38%, which for all 583 units, resulted in 

an assessment increase on a net basis from $1,469 to $1,580. Mr. Payne recalled that the last 

time that this budget was discussed, the Board wanted an increase between 5% and 10% and felt 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 8 

that they met that, with a 5% increase or $110.45 per unit, which was reasonable and warranted, 

based on not having an increase in two years and their aging community.  

 

B. Public Hearing Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2024 
Mr. Oliver pointed out that there were two public hearings: one adopting the budget and 

the annual appropriations and the other relating to special assessments and certifying an 

assessment roll.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Jolly with all in favor 
the public hearing to adopt the budget for Fiscal Year 2026 was 
opened. 

 

 No residents were present. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Metych with all in 
favor the public hearing to adopt the budget for Fiscal Year 2026 
was closed. 

 

1. Consideration of Resolution 2025-04, Relating to the Annual 
Appropriations and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Blalock seconded by Mr. Payne with all in 
favor Resolution 2025-04 Relating to the Annual Appropriations 
and Adopting the Budget for Fiscal Year 2026 was adopted. 

 

2. Consideration of Resolution 2025-05, Imposing Special Assessments 
and Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Jolly with all in favor 
the public hearing to impose special assessments and certify an 
Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026 was opened. 

 

 No residents were present. 

 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 9 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Jolly with all in favor 
the public hearing to impose special assessments and certify an 
Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026 was closed. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Metych with all in 
favor Resolution 2025-05 Imposing Special Assessments and 
Certifying an Assessment Roll for Fiscal Year 2026 was adopted. 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Business 

Mr. Blalock thanked Mr. Masters and his team for addressing the sign issues. Mr. Payne 

pointed out that this was a testament to the work that Jim and his team were doing. The Phase 2 

tennis courts being locked with access cards, seemed to be working out well. Mr. Masters heard 

no complaints from anyone. Residents were given plenty of notice that this was happening and it 

was working great and felt that residents were appreciative that the Board went the extra mile in 

trying to keep non-residents out of the community. 

 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney  
Mr. Eckert reported that it was quiet. Districts that are the same age as this one are 

looking into refinancing. There may be some options with banks that may be willing to do a 

lower rate loan compared to an open bond market refinancing. The District has a great 

underwriter, who could present options to the Board. Mr. Payne did not mind looking into 

options as long as it did not increase the time. Mr. Eckert pointed out that the District was locked 

into 30 years by Statute. 

 

B. Engineer  
Mr. Payne wanted consistency from Mr. Schaefer, as when Mr. Masters and Mr. Oliver 

contacted him, he had not responded and hoped that he was well. If it continued, they may need 

to take some action and requested that they continue to follow up between now and the next 

meeting. 

 

 C. Manager – Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 Meeting Schedule 
Mr. Oliver presented the proposed meeting schedule for Fiscal Year 2026, with meetings 

on the second Wednesday of each other month at 6:30 p.m. at this location. Special and 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 10 

continued meetings could be added. Mr. Payne felt that the schedule was working well. There 

were only two instances, where there were back-to-back meetings, as there were items that 

needed to be addressed, such as the Traffic Study. Mr. Eckert pointed out that the Board would 

be approving the budget on May 13th and adopting it in July, but 60 days was not in between the 

meeting. Mr. Oliver would move the July meeting. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Metych with all in 
favor the Fiscal Year 2026 meeting schedule as amended was 
approved. 

 

D Operations Manager 
1. Report 
2. Yellowstone Report 
3. Lake Doctors Report 

Mr. Masters presented the Operation Manager, Yellowstone and Lake Doctors Reports, 

which were included in the agenda package. Mr. Masters reported that the Yellowstone 

representative, Mr. Jason Campbell was present. Lake Doctors had a bit of a struggle on Pond 

10, behind this Amenity Center. It took two and a half months to get it corrected, using new 

herbicides and algicides, at no additional cost, which were effective. It now looked good. Mr. 

Payne questioned the cause. Mr. Masters indicated that the Lake Doctors representative who had 

25 years’ experience, had never seen anything like it, but it was now back to a good look. The 

Vesta website has been up and running. It could be accessed through the Brandy Creek CDD 

website. It provides a new fresher look for the community and had a few features that would help 

residents communicate in another way, thanks to Ms. Meadows, who was now working with 

Fleming Island. However, she was assisting with the transition. Her position has not been filled, 

but several office staff, have been taking on her tasks. Everything was going well and there were 

no issues. A Health Department inspection occurred a week or two ago, which they passed with 

flying colors. Mr. Payne asked if it was just for the pool. Mr. Masters explained when the Health 

Department comes, they ensure that gates were closing, there were no trip hazards, all of the 

required safety equipment was in place and the rails going into the pool were secure. They also 

test the water and chemical content. Brandy Creek was in great shape for all three pools. The 

access control system was up and running with no issues. Staff was working on many projects. 

Mr. Masters new assistant was introduced at the last meeting. He was working out tremendously 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 11 

with his work ethic, knowledge and get it done attitude. Many future projects were planned that 

they will do in-house, to save a tremendous amount of money. 

 

 E. Amenity Manager  
 1. Report 

2. Sheriff’s Office Report 
 Ms. Meadows presented the Amenity Manager and Sheriff’s Office Reports, which were 

included in the agenda package. She had not received the June Sheriff Report. As far as events, 

the start of Summer concert was held on Friday, May 30th. The weather was beautiful, but it was 

very hot. The music was fantastic. One of their maintenance people, who was a phenomenal 

performer, was their opening act and a band called Big Papa Fish, played behind him. There 

were kids and craft centers, for kids to have something to do during the event, as well as a food 

truck called Eats. Popsicle and Sandbar Day was on June 14th. The Summer Spectacular was this 

Saturday, July 12th. A DJ would be playing music and games. There would be a water slide for 

the kids. They were already planning for a Back-to-School event in August. Mr. Payne 

appreciated everything that Ms. Meadows has done for Brandy Creek. Ms. Meadows pointed out 

that Fleming Island was accommodating, if Mr. Masters needed her. Mr. Payne attended the 

concert and felt that it was a good live event. The attendance was not massive, but there were at 

least 30 people. It was hot, but the music was enjoyable. 

 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor's Requests and Audience 
Comments 

 Mr. Payne reported that the community garden was up and running and folks were 

participating. There was more produce than people could consume. All of the plots were used, 

but there were two more plots in three sections. Mr. Payne would continue to be part of it. 

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet & Income Statement as of May 31, 2025 
Mr. Oliver presented the May 31, 2025 Balance Sheet and Income Statement, which were 

included in the agenda package, showing a capital reserve balance of $336,000. According to 

revenues, there was a $5,000 surplus. As a result of tax certificate sales, in June they collected 

another $6,000 of O&M. Therefore, assessments would be $11,000 more than expected, due to 

penalties and fees that were collected. In addition, there was a $31,000 cost variance for total 



July 9, 2025  Brandy Creek CDD 

 12 

expenditures. In total, there was a $40,000 positive variance and $25,000 in carry forward 

surplus. 

 

B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
Mr. Oliver presented the Assessment Receipt Schedule, which was included in the 

agenda package, showing that the District was 100% collected. 

 

C. Approval of Check Registers 
Mr. Oliver presented the Check Register from April 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 in the 

amount of $199,195.75, which was included in the agenda package. Mr. Payne did not see 

anything different from what they have seen in the past. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Ms. Little with all in 
favor the April 1, 2025 to May 31, 2025 in the amount of 
$199,195.75 was approved.  

 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting – September 10, 
2025 at 6:30 p.m. at Phase 2 Amenity 
Center 

 Mr. Payne stated that the next meeting was scheduled for September 10, 2025 at 6:30 

p.m. at the Phase 2 Amenity Center.  

 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Payne seconded by Mr. Jolly with all in favor 
the meeting was adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
    
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



 

4898-3937-0565.1  

AGREEMENT FOR AQUATIC MAINTENANCE SERVICES 
 

 THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this 16th day of July, 2025, by and 
between: 
 

BRANDY CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special-purpose 
government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, being situated in St. 
Johns County, Florida whose mailing address is at 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. 
Augustine, FL 32092 (“District”); and 
 
THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC., a Florida corporation, with a mailing address of 4651 
Salisbury Rd, Suite 155, Jacksonville, FL 32256 (“Contractor,” together with District, 
“Parties”).  

 
RECITALS 

 
 WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government established pursuant to the 
Uniform Community Development District Act of 1980, as codified in Chapter 190, Florida Statutes 
(“Act”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District was established for the purpose of planning, financing, constructing, 
operating and/or maintaining certain infrastructure including stormwater management facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District owns, operates, and maintains certain stormwater management facilities 
within the boundary of the District (“Ponds”) as more particularly identified in Exhibit A, attached hereto 
and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into an agreement with an independent contractor to provide 
pond maintenance services for the Ponds; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor submitted the proposal attached hereto as Exhibit A and represents that it 
is qualified to provide professional pond maintenance services for the Ponds and has agreed to provide to 
the District those services as described in Exhibit A (“Services”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power and 
authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants contained 
herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 SECTION 1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.   The recitals so stated are true and correct and 
by this reference are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 2.   DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. 
 
  A. The District desires that the Contractor provide professional pond maintenance 
services for the Ponds within presently accepted standards for the Facilities. Upon all Parties signing this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall provide the District with the Services identified in Exhibit A. 
 
  B. While providing the Services, the Contractor shall assign such staff as may be 
required, and such staff shall be responsible for coordinating, expediting, and controlling all aspects to 
assure completion of the Services. 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������



Mobile User



 

4898-3937-0565.1  

  
  C. The Contractor shall provide the Services as shown in Section 3 of this Agreement. 
Contractor shall solely be responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its duties, obligations 
and responsibilities are met to the satisfaction of the District. 
 
  D.  This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the lands that are subject to 
this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and Contractor hereby agrees to comply 
with all applicable laws, rules, and regulations.  
        
 SECTION 3. SCOPE OF POND MAINTENANCE SERVICES. The Contractor will provide pond 
maintenance services for the Ponds as identified in Exhibit A.  The duties, obligations, and responsibilities 
of Contractor are to provide the material, tools, skill and labor necessary for the Services attached as Exhibit 
A on a monthly basis.  To the extent any of the provisions of this Agreement are in conflict with the 
provisions of Exhibit A, this Agreement controls. 
     
 SECTION 4. MANNER OF CONTRACTOR’S PERFORMANCE.  The Contractor agrees, as an 
independent contractor, to undertake work and/or perform such services as specified in this Agreement or 
any amendment, addendum or work authorization executed by the Parties or in any authorized written work 
order by the District issued in connection with this Agreement and accepted by the Contractor.  All work 
shall be performed in a neat and professional manner reasonably acceptable to the District and shall be in 
accordance with industry standards.  The performance of the Services by the Contractor under this 
Agreement and related to this Agreement shall conform to any written instructions issued by the District. 
  
 A. Should any work and/or services be required which are not specified in this Agreement or 
any addenda, but which are nevertheless necessary for the proper provision of services to the District, such 
work or services shall be fully performed by the Contractor as if described and delineated in this Agreement. 
 
 B. The Contractor agrees that the District shall not be liable for the payment of any work or 
services not included in Section 3 unless the District, through an authorized representative of the District, 
authorizes the Contractor, in writing, to perform such work. 
 
 C. The District shall designate in writing a person to act as the District’s representative with 
respect to the services to be performed under this Agreement.  The District’s representative shall have 
complete authority to transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define the District’s policies 
and decisions with respect to materials, equipment, elements, and systems pertinent to the Contractor’s 
services. 

  
  (1) The District hereby designates the District Manager or his or her designee to act as 

its representative. 
 

  (2) Upon request by the District Manager or his or her designee, the Contractor agrees 
to meet with the District’s representative to walk the property to discuss conditions, schedules, and 
items of concern regarding this Agreement. 

 
 D. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents, and 
landowners from damage.  Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor’s activities 
and work within twenty-four (24) hours.  
 
 SECTION 5. PERMIT COMPLIANCE.  Contractor agrees to provide all Services under this 
Agreement in compliance with the applicable permit conditions imposed by the South Florida Water 
Management District, as well as any other applicable permit(s) and to ensure that the District is meeting its 
maintenance related obligations under such permit(s).  
 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������



Mobile User



 

4898-3937-0565.1  

 SECTION 6. COMPENSATION; TERM.   
 
 A. As compensation for the Services described in Exhibit A, the District agrees to pay the 
Contractor Nine Hundred Ninety-Five Dollars and 00/100 Cents ($995.00) per month. If the District should 
desire additional work or services, or to add additional areas to be maintained, the Contractor agrees to 
negotiate in good faith to undertake such additional work or services.  Upon successful negotiations, the 
Parties shall agree in writing to an addendum, addenda, or change order to this Agreement.  The Contractor 
shall be compensated for such agreed additional work or services based upon a payment amount acceptable 
to the Parties and agreed to in writing. 
 
 B. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2025, through September 30, 2026, 
unless terminated earlier by either party in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.  The 
Agreement shall be automatically renewed for additional one (1) year terms, unless written notice is 
provided by either to terminate this Agreement in accordance with the terms provided herein. 

 
 C. The District may require, as a condition precedent to making any payment to the Contractor 
that all subcontractors, materialmen, suppliers or laborers be paid and require evidence, in the form of Lien 
Releases or partial Waivers of Lien, to be submitted to the District by those subcontractors, material men, 
suppliers or laborers, and further require that the Contractor provide an Affidavit relating to the payment of 
said indebtedness.  Further, the District shall have the right to require, as a condition precedent to making 
any payment, evidence from the Contractor, in a form satisfactory to the District, that any indebtedness of 
the Contractor, as to services to the District, has been paid and that the Contractor has met all of the 
obligations with regard to the  withholding and payment of taxes, Social Security payments, Workmen’s 
Compensation, Unemployment Compensation contributions, and similar payroll deductions from the wages 
of employees. 

 
 D. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual accounting practices.  As soon 
as may be practicable at the beginning of each month, the Contractor shall invoice the District for all 
services performed in the prior month and any other sums due to the Contractor. The District shall pay the 
invoice amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice date.  
 
 SECTION 7. INSURANCE. 
 
 A. The Contractor shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement the following 
insurance: 
 

(1) Worker’s Compensation Insurance in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Florida. 

  
(2) Commercial General Liability Insurance covering the Contractor’s legal liability 

for bodily injuries, with limits of not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and 
property damage liability, and covering at least the following hazards: 

 
(i) Independent Contractors Coverage for bodily injury and property damage 

in connection with any subcontractors’ operation. 
 

(3) Employer’s Liability Coverage with limits of at least $1,000,000 (one million 
dollars) per accident or disease. 

   
(4) Automobile Liability Insurance for bodily injuries in limits of not less than 

$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily injury and for property damage, providing coverage for 
any accident arising out of or resulting from the operation, maintenance, or use by the Contractor 
of any owned, non-owned, or hired automobiles, trailers, or other equipment required to be 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

licensed. 
 

B. The District, its staff, consultants and supervisors shall be named as additional insured.  
The Contractor shall furnish the District with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this 
requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the District unless it provides that any change or 
termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverage, as certified, shall not be effective within 
thirty (30) days of prior written notice to the District.  Insurance coverage shall be from a reputable 
insurance carrier, licensed to conduct business in the State of Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s 
Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 
 

C. If the Contractor fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the District 
has the right but not the obligation to secure such required insurance in which event the Contractor shall 
pay the cost for that required insurance and shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required 
in connection with the District’s obtaining the required insurance. 
 
 SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
A. Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District and its officers, 

agents, employees, successors, assigns, members, affiliates, or representatives from any and all liability, 
claims, actions, suits, liens, demands, costs, interest, expenses, damages, penalties, fines, judgments against 
the District, or loss or damage, whether monetary or otherwise, arising out of, wholly or in part by, or in 
connection with the Services to be performed by Contractor, its subcontractors, its employees and agents 
in connection with this Agreement, including litigation, mediation, arbitration, appellate, or settlement 
proceedings with respect thereto.  Additionally, nothing in this Agreement requires Contractor to indemnify 
the District for the District’s percentage of fault if the District is adjudged to be more than 50% at fault for 
any claims against the District and Contractor as jointly liable parties; however, Contractor shall indemnify 
the District for any and all percentage of fault attributable to Contractor for claims against the District, 
regardless whether the District is adjudged to be more or less than 50% at fault.  

 
B. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 

damages, liquidated damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, arbitration and/or 
mediation costs, litigation expenses, attorneys’ fees, paralegal fees, expert witness fees (incurred in court, 
out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings), and any interest, all as actually incurred. 

 
 SECTION 9. LIMITATIONS ON GOVERNMENTAL LIABILITY.  Nothing in this Agreement shall 
be deemed as a waiver of the District’s sovereign immunity or the District’s limits of liability as set forth 
in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit 
of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim which would otherwise be barred under such 
limitations of liability or by operation of law.  
 
 SECTION 10. COMPLIANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL REGULATION.  The Contractor shall keep, 
observe, and perform all requirements of applicable local, State, and Federal laws, rules, regulations, or 
ordinances.  If the Contractor fails to notify the District in writing within five (5) days of the receipt of any 
notice, order, required to comply notice, or a report of a violation or an alleged violation, made by any local, 
State, or Federal governmental body or agency or subdivision thereof with respect to the services being 
rendered under this Agreement or any action of the Contractor or any of its agents, servants, employees, or 
materialmen, or with respect to terms, wages, hours, conditions of employment, safety appliances, or any 
other requirements applicable to provision of services, or fails to comply with any requirement of such 
agency within five (5) days after receipt of any such notice, order, request to comply notice, or report of a 
violation or an alleged violation, the District may terminate this Agreement, such termination to be effective 
upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 11. LIENS AND CLAIMS.  The Contractor shall promptly and properly pay for all labor 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

employed, materials purchased, and equipment hired by it to perform under this Agreement.  The Contractor 
shall keep the District’s property free from any materialmen’s or mechanic’s liens and claims or notices in 
respect to such liens and claims, which arise by reason of the Contractor’s performance under this 
Agreement, and the Contractor shall immediately discharge any such claim or lien.  In the event that the 
Contractor does not pay or satisfy such claim or lien within three (3) business days after the filing of notice 
thereof, the District, in addition to any and all other remedies available under this Agreement, may terminate 
this Agreement to be effective immediately upon the giving of notice of termination. 
 
 SECTION 12. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE.  A 
default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law or in 
equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of damages, injunctive relief, and/or specific 
performance.  The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement against 
any interfering third party.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the District’s right to 
protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 13. CUSTOM AND USAGE.  It is hereby agreed, any law, custom, or usage to the 
contrary notwithstanding, that the District shall have the right at all times to enforce the conditions and 
agreements contained in this Agreement in strict accordance with the terms of this Agreement, 
notwithstanding any conduct or custom on the part of the District in refraining from so doing; and further, 
that the failure of the District at any time or times to strictly enforce its rights under this Agreement shall 
not be construed as having created a custom in any way or manner contrary to the specific conditions and 
agreements of this Agreement, or as having in any way modified or waived the same. 
 
 SECTION 14. SUCCESSORS.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon 
the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Parties to this Agreement, except as 
expressly limited in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 15. TERMINATION.  The District agrees that the Contractor may terminate this 
Agreement with cause by providing sixty (60) days’ written notice of termination to the District stating a 
failure of the District to perform according to the terms of this Agreement; provided, however, that the 
District shall be provided a reasonable opportunity to cure any failure under this Agreement.  The 
Contractor agrees that the District may terminate this Agreement immediately for cause by providing 
written notice of termination to the Contractor. The District shall provide thirty (30) days’ written notice of 
termination without cause.  Upon any termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall be entitled to 
payment for all work and/or services rendered up until the effective termination of this Agreement, subject 
to whatever claims or off-sets the District may have against the Contractor.   
 
 SECTION 16. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  All permits and licenses required by any governmental 
agency directly for the District shall be obtained and paid for by the District.  All other permits or licenses 
necessary for the Contractor to perform under this Agreement shall be obtained and paid for by the 
Contractor. 
 
 SECTION 17. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this Agreement 
without the prior written approval of the other.  Any purported assignment without such approval shall be 
void. 
 
 SECTION 18. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS.  In all matters relating to this Agreement, 
the Contractor shall be acting as an independent contractor.  Neither the Contractor nor employees of the 
Contractor, if there are any, are employees of the District under the meaning or application of any Federal 
or State Unemployment or Insurance Laws or Old Age Laws or otherwise.  The Contractor agrees to assume 
all liabilities or obligations imposed by any one or more of such laws with respect to employees of the 
Contractor, if there are any, in the performance of this Agreement.  The Contractor shall not have any 
authority to assume or create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the District and the Contractor 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

shall have no authority to represent the District as an agent, employee, or in any other capacity, unless 
otherwise set forth in this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 19. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY.  The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall neither control nor affect the meaning or construction of any 
of the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 20. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT.  A default by either Party under this Agreement 
shall entitle the other Party to all remedies available at law or in equity.  In the event that either the District 
or the Contractor is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to recover all fees and costs incurred, including reasonable attorneys' fees 
and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
 SECTION 21. AGREEMENT.  This instrument shall constitute the final and complete expression 
of this Agreement between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  
 
 SECTION 22. AMENDMENTS.  Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in this 
Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the Parties. 
 
 SECTION 23. AUTHORIZATION.  The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by 
the appropriate body or official of the Parties, the Parties have complied with all the requirements of law, 
and the Parties have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 24. NOTICES.  All notices, requests, consents and other communications under this 
Agreement (“Notice” or “Notices”) shall be in writing and shall be hand delivered, mailed by First Class 
Mail, postage prepaid, or sent by overnight delivery service, to the Parties, as follows: 
 
 A. If to District:   Brandy Creek 
      Community Development District    

 475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
      St. Augustine, FL 32092    

 Attn: District Manager 
 

With a copy to:  Kutak Rock LLP 
      107 West College Avenue 
      Tallahassee, Florida 32301 
      Attn: District Counsel 
 

B. If to the Contractor:  The Lake Doctors, Inc. 
 4651 Salisbury Rd, Suite 155 
 Jacksonville, FL 32256 

     Attn: _____________ 
 
 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only upon 
actual delivery at the address set forth above.  Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place of delivery) or 
on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day.  If any time for giving Notice 
contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, the Notice period shall be 
extended to the next succeeding business day.  Saturdays, Sundays, and legal holidays recognized by the 
United States government shall not be regarded as business days.  Counsel for the District and counsel for 
the Contractor may deliver Notices on behalf of the District and the Contractor.  Any party or other person 
to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify the Parties and addressees of any change in name or 
address to which Notices shall be sent by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Parties 
and addressees set forth in this Agreement. 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

 
 SECTION 25. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the 
Parties hereto and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of any 
third party not a formal party to this Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is 
intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the Parties hereto any 
right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this 
Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this 
Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
 SECTION 26. CONTROLLING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement and the provisions contained 
in this Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and controlled according to the laws of the State of 
Florida.  Each party agrees to and consents that the exclusive venue for any litigation arising out of or 
related to this Agreement shall be brought in a court of appropriate jurisdiction, in and for St. Johns County, 
Florida. 
 
 SECTION 27. COMPLIANCE WITH PUBLIC RECORDS LAWS.  Contractor understands and 
agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be 
public records, and, accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law 
in handling such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is Jim Oliver (“Public Records 
Custodian”).  Among other requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep 
and maintain public records required by the District to perform the service; 2) upon request by the Public 
Records Custodian, provide the District with the requested public records or allow the records to be 
inspected or copied within a  reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in 
Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration 
of the contract term and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the 
Public Records Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at 
no cost, all  public records in Contractor’s possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all 
applicable  requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws.  When such public records 
are transferred by the Contractor, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt 
or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  All records stored electronically 
must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats.   

 
IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 
OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT 
THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 475 W. TOWN PLACE, SUITE 114, 
ST. AUGUSTINE, FL 32092, (904) 940-5850, JOLIVER@GMSNF.COM. 

 
 SECTION 28. SEVERABILITY.  The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions 
of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining portions of this Agreement, 
or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 
 
 SECTION 29. ARM’S LENGTH TRANSACTION.  This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the Parties as an arm's length transaction.  The Parties participated fully in the preparation of this 
Agreement with the assistance of their respective counsel.  In the case of a dispute concerning the 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, the Parties are each deemed to have drafted, chosen, and 
selected the language, and any doubtful language will not be interpreted or construed against any party. 
 
 SECTION 30. COUNTERPARTS.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which when executed and delivered shall be an original; however, all such 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

counterparts together shall constitute, but one and the same instrument. Additionally, the Parties 
acknowledge and agree that the Agreement may be executed by electronic signature, which shall be 
considered as an original signature for all purposes and shall have the same force and effect as an original 
signature. Without limitation, “electronic signature” shall include faxed versions of an original signature, 
electronically scanned and transmitted versions (e.g. via PDF) of an original signature, or signatures created 
in a digital format.  
 
 SECTION 32. E-VERIFY.  The Contractor shall comply with and perform all applicable 
provisions of Section 448.095, Florida Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida Statute, 
Contractor shall register with and use the United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify 
system to verify the work authorization status of all newly hired employees. The District may terminate this 
Agreement immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the Contractor has knowingly violated 
Section 448.091, Florida Statutes.  By entering into this Agreement, the Contractor represents that no public 
employer has terminated a contract with the Contractor under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, 
within the year immediately preceding the date of this Agreement.   
 

SECTION 33. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES.   The Contractor 
agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the inspector general in any 
investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section and to incorporate in all 
subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 34.  STATEMENT REGARDING PUBLIC INTEGRITY LAWS. Contractor acknowledges 

that, in addition to all Laws and Regulations that apply to this Agreement] the following provisions of 
Florida law (“Public Integrity Laws”) apply to this Agreement:  

 
A. Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, titled Public entity crime; denial or revocation of the 

right to transact business with public entities; 

B. Section 287.134, Florida Statutes, titled Discrimination; denial or revocation of the right 
to transact business with public entities; 

C. Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, titled Prohibition against contracting with scrutinized 
companies; 

D. Section 287.137, Florida Statutes, titled Antitrust violations; denial or revocation of the 
right to transact business with public entities; denial of economic benefits;  

E. Section 287.138, Florida Statutes, titled Contracting with entities of foreign countries of 
concern prohibited; and 

F. Section 787.06, Florida Statutes, titled Human Trafficking. 
Contractor acknowledges that the Public Integrity Laws prohibit entities that meet certain criteria 

from bidding on or entering into or renewing a contract with governmental entities, including with the 
District (“Prohibited Criteria”).  Contractor acknowledges that the District may terminate this Agreement 
if the Contractor is found to have met the Prohibited Criteria or violated the Public Integrity Laws. 
Contractor certifies under penalty of perjury that in entering into this Agreement, neither it nor any of its 
officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the 
management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity, meets any of the Prohibited Criteria, and in the 
event such status changes, Contractor shall immediately notify the District. By entering into this Agreement, 
Contractor agrees that any renewal or extension of this Contract shall be deemed a recertification of such 
status. 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have signed and sealed this Agreement on the day 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 

4898-3937-0565.1  

and year first written above. 
 
 
ATTEST:     BRANDY CREEK COMMUNITY  

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
             
Assistant Secretary    Chair, Board of Supervisors 
 
        
         

ATTEST: WITNESS:     THE LAKE DOCTORS, INC. 
       
 
 
             
Signature of Witness    By:        
      Its:        
Print Name of Witness    
       

_______________________ 
 
Exhibit A: Proposal for Pond Maintenance Services 
  

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������



Mobile User
Mark A Seymour

Mobile User
Sales Manager

Mobile User
Jesse Mason

Mobile User



 

4898-3937-0565.1  

Exhibit A 
Proposal for Pond Maintenance Services 

 

 

�����������������������
�����
�
�������
�
	�������������





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



























 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  Board of Supervisors 
 
From: District Management 
 
Date:  September 10, 2025 
 
RE:  HB7013 – Special Districts Performance Measures and Standards 
 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
To enhance accountability and transparency, new regulations were established for all 
special districts, by the Florida Legislature, during their 2024 legislative session. Starting on 
October 1, 2024, or by the end of the first full fiscal year after its creation (whichever comes 
later), each special district must establish goals and objectives for each program and 
activity, as well as develop performance measures and standards to assess the 
achievement of these goals and objectives. Additionally, by December 1 each year (initial 
report due on December 1, 2025), each special district is required to publish an annual 
report on its website, detailing the goals and objectives achieved, the performance 
measures and standards used, and any goals or objectives that were not achieved.  

 
District Management has identified the attached key categories to focus on for Fiscal Year 
2025 and develop statutorily compliant goals for each: 
 
Additionally, special districts must provide an annual reporting form to share with the 
public that reflects whether the goals & objectives were met for the year. District 
Management has streamlined these requirements into a single document that meets both 
the statutory requirements for goal/objective setting and annual reporting.  
 
The proposed goals/objectives and the annual reporting form are attached as exhibit A to 
this memo. District Management recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt these 
goals and objectives to maintain compliance with HB7013 and further enhance their 
commitment to the accountability and transparency of the District.  

 
 
 
 



 

 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A:  
Goals, Objectives and Annual Reporting Form 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 3 

Brandy Creek Community Development District 
 Performance Measures/Standards & 

Annual Reporting Form 
 

October 1, 2025 – September 30, 2026 
 

1. Community Communication and Engagement 
Goal 1.1: Public Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Hold at least five regular Board of Supervisor meetings per year to 
conduct CDD related business and discuss community needs. 
Measurement: Number of public board meetings held annually as evidenced by 
meeting minutes and legal advertisements. 
Standard: A minimum of five board meetings were held during the Fiscal Year. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
 
Goal 1.2: Notice of Meetings Compliance 

Objective: Provide public notice of meetings in accordance with Florida Statutes, 
using at least two communication methods. 
Measurement: Timeliness and method of meeting notices as evidenced by posting 
to CDD website, publishing in local newspaper and via electronic communication. 
Standard: 100% of meetings were advertised per Florida statute on at least two 
mediums (i.e., newspaper, CDD website, electronic communications). 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 
 

2. Infrastructure and Facilities Maintenance 
Goal 2.1: Field Management and/or District Management Site Inspections 

Objective: Field manager and/or district manager will conduct quarterly 
inspections per District Management services agreement to ensure safety and 
proper functioning of the District’s infrastructure. 
Measurement: Field manager and/or district manager visits were successfully 
completed, as evidenced by field manager and/or district manager’s reports, notes 
or other record keeping method. 
Standard: 100% of site visits were successfully completed as described within field 
management services agreement 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
 
3. Financial Transparency and Accountability 
Goal 3.1: Annual Budget Preparation 

Objective: Prepare and approve the annual proposed budget by June 15 and final 
budget was adopted by September 30 each year. 



 

 4 

Measurement: Proposed budget was approved by the Board before June 15 and 
final budget was adopted by September 30 as evidenced by meeting minutes and 
budget documents listed on CDD website and/or within district records.  
Standard: 100% of budget approval & adoption were completed by the statutory 
deadlines and posted to the CDD website. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.2: Financial Reports 

Objective: Publish to the CDD website the most recent versions of the following 
documents: Annual audit, current fiscal year budget with any amendments, and 
most recent financials within the latest agenda package.    
Measurement: Annual audit, previous years’ budgets, and financials are accessible 
to the public as evidenced by corresponding documents on the CDD’s website. 
Standard: CDD website contains 100% of the following information: Most recent 
annual audit, most recent adopted/amended fiscal year budget, and most recent 
agenda package with updated financials. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
Goal 3.3: Annual Financial Audit 

Objective: Conduct an annual independent financial audit per statutory 
requirements and publish the results to the CDD website for public inspection, and 
transmit to the State of Florida. 
Measurement: Timeliness of audit completion and publication as evidenced by 
meeting minutes showing board approval and annual audit is available on the 
CDD’s website and transmitted to the State of Florida. 
Standard: Audit was completed by an independent auditing firm per statutory 
requirements and results were posted to the CDD website and transmitted to the 
State of Florida. 
Achieved: Yes ☐ No ☐ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 5 

 
Chair/Vice Chair:____________________________   Date:________________ 
Print Name:_________________________________ 
Brandy Creek Community Development District 
 

 
 

District Manager:____________________________   Date:________________ 
Print Name:_________________________________ 
Brandy Creek Community Development District 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. 









 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

E. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited	Financial	Reporting
July	31,	2025



1 Balance	Sheet

2-3 General	Fund	Income	Statement

4-5 Month	to	Month

6 Capital	Reserve	Fund	Income	Statement

7 Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2013	Income	Statement

8 Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015	Income	Statement

9 Assessment	Receipt	Schedules

10 Long	Term	Debt	Summary

Table	of	Contents



	 General	 Capital	Reserve Debt	Service	 Totals
	 Fund Fund Fund Governmental	Funds

Assets: 	
Cash:
Cash	-	WellsFargo -$																																						 54,704$																													 -$																																						 54,704$																																								
Cash	-	Hancock	Bank 74,000																																	 -																																														 -																																															 74,000																																											

Assessment	Receiviable -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	From	Debt	Service -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	From	Other -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	From	Capital	Reserve -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	From	General	Fund -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	Fron	Other	Gov'ts -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									

Investments:
State	Board	of	Administration	(SBA) 146,909																														 240,938																													 -																																															 387,847																																								
Custody	Acct	-	General	Account 362,621																														 -																																														 -																																															 362,621																																								
Custody	Acct	-	Capital	Reserve -																																															 42,847																																 -																																															 42,847																																											

Series	2013A
Reserve -																																															 -																																														 31,596																																	 31,596																																											
Revenue -																																															 -																																														 92,780																																	 92,780																																											

Series		2015
Reserve	 -																																															 -																																														 89,814																																	 89,814																																											
Revenue	 -																																															 -																																														 57,065																																	 57,065																																											

Prepaid	Expenses 1,490																																				 -																																														 -																																															 1,490																																														
Deposits 2,000																																				 -																																														 -																																															 2,000																																														

Total	Assets 587,020$																								 338,488$																							 271,255$																								 1,196,763$																												

Liabilities:
Accounts	Payable 18,164$																														 10,667																																 -$																																						 28,831$																																								
Accrued	Expenses 9,729																																				 -																																														 -																																															 9,729																																														
FiCA	Payable -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	to	Debt	Service -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	to	General	Fund -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									
Due	to	Other -																																															 -																																														 -																																															 -																																																									

Total	Liabilites 27,894$																											 10,667$																										 -$																																					 38,561$																																					

Fund	Balance: 	
Nonspendable:
Deposits 2,000$																																	 -$																																					 -$																																						 2,000$																																											

Restricted	for:
Debt	Service	 -																																															 -																																														 271,255																														 271,255																																								

Assigned	for:	
Capital	Reserve	Fund -																																															 327,821																													 -																																															 327,821																																								

Unassigned 555,636																														 -																																														 -																																															 555,636																																								

Total	Fund	Balances 559,126$																								 327,821$																							 271,255$																								 1,158,202$																												

Total		Liabilities	&	Fund	Balance 587,020$																								 338,488$																							 271,255$																								 1,196,763$																												

Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Combined	Balance	Sheet
July	31,	2025

1



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending		July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 856,994$														 856,994$														 861,950$														 4,956$																									
Interest	Income 12,000																			 12,000																			 18,803																			 6,803																												
Rental/Miscellaneous	Income 6,000																						 5,000																						 6,450																						 1,450																												
Cost	Sharing	Revenue 11,159																			 9,299																						 11,557																			 2,258																												
Special	Events	Revenue 1,500																						 1,250																						 -																																		 (1,250)																										
Swim	Lessons	Revenue -																																		 -																																		 464																										 464																																

Total		Revenues 887,652$														 884,542$														 899,223$														 14,681$																						

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees 6,000$																				 4,800$																				 4,800$																				 -$																																					
PR-FICA 459																										 367																										 367																										 -																																							
Engineering 15,000																			 12,500																			 2,460																						 10,040																									
Attorney 25,000																			 20,833																			 15,203																			 5,630																												
Annual	Audit 3,685																						 3,685																						 3,685																						 -																																							
Assessment	Administration 5,300																						 5,300																						 5,300																						 -																																							
Arbitrage	Rebate 600																										 600																										 600																										 -																																							
Trustee	Fees 8,000																						 8,000																						 7,939																						 61																																			
Management	Fees 59,695																			 49,746																			 49,746																			 -																																							
Information	Technology 1,723																						 1,436																						 1,436																						 -																																							
Telephone 550																										 458																										 127																										 331																																
Postage	&	Delivery 1,000																						 833																										 1,551																						 (718)																														
Insurance	General	Liability/Public	Officials 10,763																			 10,763																			 9,823																						 940																																
Printing	&	Binding 1,000																						 833																										 891																										 (58)																																	
Legal	Advertising 1,420																						 1,183																						 1,204																						 (21)																																	
Other	Current	Charges 2,200																						 1,833																						 2,196																						 (362)																														
Office	Supplies 100																										 83																													 7																																 77																																			
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																										 175																										 175																										 -																																							

Total	General	&	Administrative 142,669$														 123,430$														 107,509$														 15,921$																						

Brandy	Creek

2



Community	Development	District
General	Fund

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending		July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Brandy	Creek

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Insurance 39,274$																	 39,274$																	 39,055$																	 219$																													
Facility	Administration/Events	Coordinator 40,096																			 33,413																			 33,413																			 -																																							
Facility	Staffing	(Contingency) 5,000																						 4,167																						 -																																		 4,167																												
Pool	Monitors 41,849																			 31,398																			 31,398																			 -																																							
Field	Operations	Manager 76,684																			 63,903																			 63,903																			 -																																							
Mobile	App 2,500																						 -																																		 -																																		 -																																							
Office	Supplies/Mailings/	Printing 1,900																						 1,900																						 1,972																						 (72)																																	
Pool	Maintenance	Service	(Vesta) 37,176																			 30,980																			 31,500																			 (520)																														
Pool	Chemicals	(Poolsure) 19,000																			 15,833																			 15,274																			 560																																
Permit	Fees 925																										 925																										 925																										 -																																							
Landscape	Maintenance 139,506																 116,255																 114,131																 2,124																												
Landscape	Contingency 25,000																			 20,833																			 20,322																			 511																																
Community	Garden 5,000																						 2,308																						 2,308																						 -																																							
Irrigation	Maintenance 10,000																			 8,333																						 3,677																						 4,656																												
Sign	Repairs 2,500																						 400																										 400																										 -																																							
Lake	Maintenance 11,580																			 9,650																						 9,650																						 -																																							
General	Facility	Maintenance 30,000																			 30,000																			 41,221																			 (11,221)																							
Pet	Waste	Disposal 8,018																						 6,682																						 6,682																						 -																																							
Streetlighting 42,834																			 35,695																			 31,770																			 3,925																												
Telephone 600																										 500																										 486																										 14																																			
Cable 2,300																						 1,917																						 1,925																						 (8)																																				
Electric 32,000																			 26,667																			 20,690																			 5,977																												
Water/Sewer/Irrigation 48,000																			 40,000																			 40,684																			 (684)																														
Security	(RollKall) 12,000																			 10,000																			 10,041																			 (41)																																	
Security	Camera	Lease	&	Maintenance 3,000																						 2,500																						 315																										 2,185																												
Security	-	License	Plate	Reader	System 11,000																			 9,167																						 5,068																						 4,099																												
Refuse	Service 4,080																						 3,400																						 3,571																						 (171)																														
Janitorial 30,067																			 25,056																			 25,056																			 -																																							
Community	Web	Site	Services 750																										 625																										 500																										 125																																
Special	Events 12,000																			 12,000																			 13,910																			 (1,910)																										
Recreation	Passes 1,200																						 367																										 367																										 -																																							
Performance	Incentive 9,000																						 9,000																						 8,876																						 124																																

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 704,839$														 593,147$														 579,088$														 14,059$																						

Total	Expenditures 847,508$														 716,578$														 686,598$														 29,980$																						

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 40,144$																	 212,626$														

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Capital	Reserve	-	Transfer	Out (70,000)																	 (70,000)																	 (70,000)																	 -																																							

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) (70,000)$															 (70,000)$															 (70,000)$															 -$																																					

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (29,856)$															 (70,000)$															 142,626$														 -$																																					

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 29,856$																	 416,500$														

Fund	Balance	-	Ending (0)$																												 559,126$														

3



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll -$																								 43,175$																 113,206$													 600,894$													 79,323$																 -$																								 15,631$																 -$																								 6,636$																			 3,084$																			 -$																								 -$																								 861,950$													
Interest	Income 1,392																					 860																									 776																									 970																									 2,453																					 2,756																					 2,586																					 2,518																					 2,352																					 2,141																					 -																																	 -																																	 18,803																		
Rental/Miscellaneous	Income -																																	 1,110																					 -																																	 960																									 490																									 490																									 620																									 650																									 1,310																					 820																									 -																																	 -																																	 6,450																					
Cost	Sharing	Revenue -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 11,557																		 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 11,557																		
Special	Events	Revenue -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	
Swim	Lessons	Revenue 464																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 464																									

Total		Revenues 1,856$																			 45,145$																 113,982$													 602,824$													 93,823$																 3,246$																			 18,837$																 3,168$																			 10,298$																 6,044$																			 -$																								 -$																								 899,223$													

Expenditures:

General	&	Administrative:

Supervisor	Fees -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 1,000$																			 -$																								 800$																							 -$																								 800$																							 200$																							 1,000$																			 -$																								 -$																								 4,800$																			
PR-FICA -																																	 77																												 -																																	 77																												 -																																	 61																												 -																																	 61																												 15																												 77																												 -																																	 -																																	 367																									
Engineering -																																	 615																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 820																									 1,025																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,460																					
Attorney 353																									 2,457																					 228																									 1,723																					 588																									 2,373																					 736																									 3,306																					 873																									 2,566																					 -																																	 -																																	 15,203																		
Annual	Audit -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 3,685																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 3,685																					
Assessment	Administration 5,300																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,300																					
Arbitrage	Rebate -																																	 600																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 600																									
Trustee	Fees 5,853																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,085																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 7,939																					
Management	Fees 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 4,975																					 -																																	 -																																	 49,746																		
Information	Technology 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 144																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,436																					
Telephone -																																	 59																												 -																																	 14																												 -																																	 15																												 -																																	 14																												 -																																	 25																												 -																																	 -																																	 127																									
Postage	&	Delivery 164																									 148																									 99																												 132																									 76																												 84																												 151																									 106																									 474																									 117																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,551																					
Insurance	General	Liability/Public	Officials 9,823																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 9,823																					
Printing	&	Binding 37																												 -																																	 28																												 5																															 15																												 14																												 39																												 21																												 729																									 4																															 -																																	 -																																	 891																									
Legal	Advertising -																																	 69																												 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 70																												 66																												 -																																	 999																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,204																					
Other	Current	Charges 367																									 173																									 190																									 197																									 186																									 163																									 352																									 148																									 238																									 183																									 -																																	 -																																	 2,196																					
Office	Supplies 0																															 1																															 1																															 1																															 1																															 0																															 1																															 1																															 1																															 0																															 -																																	 -																																	 7																															
Dues,	Licenses	&	Subscriptions 175																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 175																									

Total	General	&	Administrative 27,190$																 10,316$																 5,665$																			 8,266$																			 5,984$																			 10,783$																 6,463$																			 10,394$																 13,358$																 9,090$																			 -$																														 -$																														 107,509$													

Month	to	Month

4



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Total

Month	to	Month

Operations	&	Maintenance

Field	Expenditures
Insurance 37,763$																 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 1,292$																			 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 -$																								 39,055$																
Facility	Administration/Events	Coordinator 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 3,341																					 -																																	 -																																	 33,413																		
Facility	Staffing	(Contingency) -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																											
Pool	Monitors -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,313																					 3,917																					 4,166																					 9,509																					 11,494																		 -																																	 -																																	 31,398																		
Field	Operations	Manager 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 6,390																					 -																																	 -																																	 63,903																		
Mobile	App -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																											
Office	Supplies/Mailings/	Printing 316																									 30																												 193																									 186																									 -																																	 21																												 181																									 361																									 271																									 414																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,972																					
Pool	Maintenance	Service	(Vesta) 2,806																					 2,806																					 2,806																					 2,806																					 2,806																					 3,678																					 4,379																					 3,799																					 2,806																					 2,806																					 -																																	 -																																	 31,500																		
Pool	Chemicals	(Poolsure) 1,476																					 1,476																					 1,476																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 1,550																					 -																																	 -																																	 15,274																		
Permit	Fees -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 925																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 925																									
Landscape	Maintenance 11,178																		 11,178																		 11,178																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 11,514																		 -																																	 -																																	 114,131															
Landscape	Contingency 3,472																					 2,250																					 -																																	 -																																	 3,800																					 -																																	 350																									 9,800																					 650																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 20,322																		
Community	Garden -																																	 -																																	 383																									 1,052																					 153																									 419																									 301																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 2,308																					
Irrigation	Maintenance 481																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 1,209																					 776																									 550																									 662																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 3,677																					
Sign	Repairs -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 400																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 400																									
Lake	Maintenance 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 965																									 -																																	 -																																	 9,650																					
General	Facility	Maintenance 2,221																					 6,884																					 4,595																					 3,221																					 11,487																		 3,232																					 706																									 6,332																					 1,170																					 1,372																					 -																																	 -																																	 41,221																		
Pet	Waste	Disposal 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 668																									 -																																	 -																																	 6,682																					
Streetlighting 3,151																					 3,151																					 3,151																					 3,151																					 3,192																					 3,206																					 3,206																					 3,206																					 3,206																					 3,147																					 -																																	 -																																	 31,770																		
Telephone 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 49																												 -																																	 -																																	 486																									
Cable 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 180																									 305																									 -																																	 -																																	 1,925																					
Electric 2,290																					 2,028																					 1,893																					 2,017																					 1,901																					 1,899																					 2,202																					 2,169																					 2,161																					 2,131																					 -																																	 -																																	 20,690																		
Water/Sewer/Irrigation 3,422																					 3,905																					 3,133																					 3,827																					 3,091																					 2,796																					 3,711																					 5,819																					 5,238																					 5,743																					 -																																	 -																																	 40,684																		
Security	(RollKall) 173																									 1,906																					 866																									 1,393																					 866																									 347																									 1,891																					 866																									 866																									 866																									 -																																	 -																																	 10,041																		
Security	Camera	Lease	&	Maintenance -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 315																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 315																									
Security	-	License	Plate	Reader	System -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,068																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 5,068																					
Refuse	Service 358																									 358																									 356																									 355																									 356																									 359																									 357																									 358																									 357																									 355																									 -																																	 -																																	 3,571																					
Janitorial 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 2,506																					 -																																	 -																																	 25,056																		
Community	Web	Site	Services 150																									 -																																	 150																									 -																																	 -																																	 150																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 50																												 -																																	 -																																	 500																									
Special	Events 3,631																					 2,622																					 1,253																					 1,103																					 379																									 966																									 1,766																					 1,431																					 245																									 514																									 -																																	 -																																	 13,910																		
Recreation	Passes -																																	 367																									 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 367																									
Performance	Incentive -																																	 8,876																					 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 8,876																					

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 86,988$																 61,936$																 45,533$																 46,274$																 61,472$																 49,014$																 50,993$																 67,057$																 53,642$																 56,179$																 -$																														 -$																														 579,088$													

Total	Operations	&	Maintenance 86,988$																 61,936$																 45,533$																 46,274$																 61,472$																 49,014$																 50,993$																 67,057$																 53,642$																 56,179$																 -$																														 -$																														 579,088$													

Total	Expenditures 114,178$													 72,252$																 51,197$																 54,541$																 67,456$																 59,798$																 57,456$																 77,451$																 67,000$																 65,269$																 -$																														 -$																														 686,598$													

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (112,322)$											 (27,107)$														 62,785$																 548,283$													 26,367$																 (56,552)$														 (38,619)$														 (74,283)$														 (56,702)$														 (59,224)$														 -$																														 -$																														 212,626$													

Other	Financing	Sources/Uses:

Capital	Reserve	-	Transfer	Out -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 (70,000)																 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 -																																	 (70,000)$														

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/Uses -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (70,000)$														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 -$																														 (70,000)$														

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance (112,322)$											 (27,107)$														 62,785$																 548,283$													 (43,633)$														 (56,552)$														 (38,619)$														 (74,283)$														 (56,702)$														 (59,224)$														 -$																														 -$																														 142,626$													

5



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Capital	Reserve	Fund
Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance

For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual
Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues

Interest 7,500$		 			 6,250$		 		 13,208$		 			 6,958$		 			

Total		Revenues 7,500$		 			 6,250$		 		 13,208$		 			 6,958$		 			

Expenditures:

Capital	Outlay	-	Equipment/Facilities	 30,000$		 			 30,000$		 		 153,748$		 			 (123,748)$		 			
Other	Current	Charges 450	 375	 125	 250	
Repair	and	Replacement 22,050	 22,050	 77,814	 (55,764)																	
Community	Garden -	 -	 -	 -	

Total	Expenditures 52,500$		 			 52,425$		 		 231,687$		 			 (179,262)$		 			

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures (45,000)$		 			 (218,479)$		 			

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses)

Capital	Reserve	Transfer	In 70,000$		 			 70,000$		 		 70,000$		 			 -$		 		

Total	Other	Financing	Sources	(Uses) 70,000$		 			 70,000$		 		 70,000$		 			 -$		 		

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 25,000$		 			 (148,479)$		 			

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 462,809$		 			 476,300$		 			

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 487,809$		 			 327,821$		 			

6



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2013A

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual

Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 321,394$														 321,394$														 320,828$														 (566)$																						
Interest	Income 7,500																						 6,250																						 7,512																						 1,262																						

Total		Revenues 328,894$														 327,644$														 328,339$														 696$																								

Expenditures:

Interest	-11/1 42,751$																	 42,751$																	 42,751$																	 -$																															
Special	Call	-	11/1 -																																		 -																																		 5,000																						 (5,000)																				
Interest	-	5/1 42,751																			 42,751																			 42,662																			 89																													
Principal	-	5/1 230,000																 230,000																 230,000																 -																																		
Special	Call	-	5/1 -																																		 -																																		 5,000																						 (5,000)																				

Total	Expenditures 315,502$														 315,502$														 325,412$														 (9,911)$																		

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 13,392$																	 2,927$																				

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 13,392$																	 -$																															 2,927$																				 -$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 85,022$																	 121,450$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 98,414$																	 124,377$														

7



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District
Debt	Service	Fund	Series	2015

Statement	of	Revenues,	Expenditures,	and	Changes	in	Fund	Balance
For	The	Period	Ending	July	31,	2025

Adopted Prorated	Budget Actual

Budget Thru	07/31/25 Thru	07/31/25 Variance

Revenues:
	
Special	Assessments	-	Tax	Roll 189,222$														 189,222$														 181,996$														 (7,226)$																		
Interest	Income 7,500																						 6,250																						 6,490																						 240																										

Total		Revenues 196,722$														 195,472$														 188,487$														 (6,985)$																		

Expenditures:

Interest	-11/1 32,149$																	 32,149$																	 32,054$																	 95$																											
Special	Call	-	11/1 -																																		 -																																		 5,000																						 (5,000)																				
Interest	-	5/1 31,625																			 31,625																			 31,439																			 186																										
Principal	-	5/1 115,000																 115,000																 115,000																 -																																		
Special	Call	-	5/1 -																																		 -																																		 5,000																						 (5,000)																				

Total	Expenditures 178,774$														 178,774$														 188,493$														 (9,719)$																		

Excess	(Deficiency)	of	Revenues	over	Expenditures 17,948$																	 (6)$																												

Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses):

Transfer	In/(Out) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Total	Other	Financing	Sources/(Uses) -$																															 -$																															 -$																															 -$																															

Net	Change	in	Fund	Balance 17,948$																	 -$																															 (6)$																												 -$																															

Fund	Balance	-	Beginning 54,093$																	 146,884$														
	

Fund	Balance	-	Ending 72,042$																	 146,878$														

8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



SERIES 2003 / SERIES 2006 /
#UNITS 2013 DEBT 2015 DEBT O&M

ASSESSED ASSESSED  ASMNT ASMT ASMT TOTAL ASSESSED
NET	ASSESSMENTS	TAX	ROLL 583 318,983.07 180,950.00 856,993.68 1,356,926.75

SERIES 2003 / SERIES 2006 /
DATE 2013 DEBT 2015 DEBT O&M TOTAL   

1 11/5/2024 605.18																			 343.30																							 1,625.91																 2,574.39																							
2 11/15/2024 7,170.56															 4,067.66																			 19,264.74													 30,502.96																				
3 11/19/2024 8,294.58															 4,705.28																			 22,284.59													 35,284.45																				
4 12/6/2024 24,214.05												 13,735.94																 65,054.53													 103,004.52																	
5 12/18/2024 17,922.67												 10,167.02																 48,151.83													 76,241.52																				
6 1/9/2025 222,970.44									 126,484.77													 599,042.02										 948,497.23																	

INTEREST	1 1/14/2025 689.23																			 390.98																							 1,851.71																 2,931.92																							
7 2/20/2025 29,524.97												 16,748.67																 79,323.07													 125,596.71																	
8 4/5/2025 5,477.68															 3,107.33																			 14,716.59													 23,301.60																				

INTEREST	2 4/14/2025 340.49																			 193.15																							 914.76																				 1,448.40																							
9	-	TAX	SALE 6/13/2025 2,470.15															 1,401.25																			 6,636.42																 10,507.82																				

10 7/10/2025 1,147.79															 651.11																							 3,083.71																 4,882.61																							
-																											 -																															 -																												 -																																			
-																											 -																															 -																												 -																																			
-																											 -																															 -																												 -																																			
-																											 -																															 -																												 -																																			
-																											 -																															 -																												 -																																			

TOTAL	RECEIVED 	 320,827.81$						 181,996.47$										 861,949.88$							 1,364,774.13$										

SERIES 2003 / SERIES 2006 /
2013 DEBT 2015 DEBT O&M TOTAL

BALANCE DUE (1,844.74)$      (1,046.47)$         (4,956.20)$       (7,847.41)$           

PERCENT COLLECTED 100.58% 100.58% 100.58% 100.58%

Brandy	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Special	Assessment	Receipts	-	St	Johns	County
Fiscal	Year	2025

9



Brandy	Creek
Community	Development	District

Long	Term	Debt	Report

Interest	Rate: 6.35%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/2034
Reserve	Fund	Definition 10%	Max	Annual
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $31,569
Reserve	Fund	Balance 31,596	

Bonds	Outstanding	-	9/30/2013 $4,545,000
Less:		November	1,	2013	(Prepayment) $0
Less:		May	1,	2014	(Mandatory) ($160,000)
Less:		May	1,	2015	(Mandatory) ($165,000)
Less:		May	1,	2015	(Prepayment) ($10,000)
Less:		May	2,	2016	(Mandatory) ($170,000)
Less:		May	1,	2017	(Mandatory) ($175,000)
Less:		November	1,	2017	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2018 ($180,000)
Less:		November	1,	2018	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2019 ($190,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020 ($195,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020	(Prepayment) ($10,000)
Less:		November	1,	2020	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2021 ($200,000)
Less:		May	1,	2021	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2021	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022 ($210,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2023 ($215,000)
Less:		May	1,	2023	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2023	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2024 ($225,000)
Less:		May	1,	2024	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2024	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2025 ($230,000)
Less:		May	1,	2025	(Prepayment) ($5,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $2,155,000

Interest	Rate: 3.70%
Maturity	Date: 5/1/1936
Reserve	Fund	Definition 50%	Max	Annual
Reserve	Fund	Requirement $89,162
Reserve	Fund	Balance 89,814	

Bonds	outstanding	-	10/30/2015 $2,535,000
Less:		May	2,	2016 ($15,000)
Less:		May	1,	2017 ($85,000)
Less:		November	1,	2017	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2018 ($90,000)
Less:		November	1,	2018	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2019 ($95,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020 ($95,000)
Less:		May	1,	2020	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2020	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2021 ($100,000)
Less:		November	1,	2021	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022 ($100,000)
Less:		May	1,	2022	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2023 ($105,000)
Less:		May	1,	2023	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2023	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2024 ($110,000)
Less:		May	1,	2024	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		November	1,	2024	(Prepayment) ($5,000)
Less:		May	1,	2025 ($115,000)
Less:		May	1,	2025	(Prepayment) ($5,000)

Current	Bonds	Outstanding $1,570,000

Series	2013	Special	Assessment	Refunding	Bonds	

Series	2015	Special	Assessment		Bonds

10



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



Fund Date check	#'s Amount Amount

General	Fund
6/1/25	-	6/30/25 2770-2792 55,636.36$																											

	 7/1/25	-	7/31/25 2793-2808 52,199.57																														

107,835.93$																								
Utilities	and	Autopayments

06/05/25 RollKall	Technol 519.75$																																		
06/06/25 RollKall	Technol 346.50																																					
06/04/25 AT&T 48.61																																								
06/09/25 JEA 5,237.80																																	
06/24/25 HWB	Credit	Card 1,990.30																																	
06/24/25 Florida	High	Speed	Internet 125.00																																					
06/24/25 FPL 5,367.82																																	
06/30/25 RollKall	Technol 866.26																																					
07/07/25 AT&T 48.61																																								
07/08/25 Republic	Services 355.22																																					
07/09/25 JEA 5,742.52																																	
07/18/25 IRS	FICA	Payment 153.00																																					
07/23/25 HWB	Credit	Card 1,571.76																																	
07/24/25 Florida	High	Speed	Internet 125.00																																					
07/28/25 FPL 5,277.25																																	
	 	

TOTAL	UTILITIES	PAID	ONLINE	OR	AUTOPAY 27,775.40$																											

TOTAL 135,611.33$																								

*Utilities	and	Autopayments	available	upon	request

Brandy	Creek
COMMUNITY	DEVELOPMENT	DISTRICT

Fiscal	Year	2025

Check	Register



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/02/25          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       BRANDY CREEK - GENERAL FUND

BANK C BRANDY - HANCOCK GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/05/25 00168 6/03/25 144705   202506 310-51300-42500                                     *              561.75
LOAD, READ, CONVERT FILES

6/03/25 144705   202506 310-51300-42000                                     *              425.59
POSTAGE

ADVANCED DIRECT MARKETING SERVICES                                987.34 002770
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00292 5/30/25 05302025 202505 320-57200-49400                                     *              300.00

55' OBSTACLE COURSE 2HR
BOUNCERS SLIDES AND MORE INC                                      300.00 002771

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00334 5/29/25 8294     202505 320-57200-46600                                     *               19.42

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                19.42 002772

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00341 6/01/25 13129562 202506 320-57200-46250                                     *            1,549.51

JUN POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,549.51 002773

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/05/25 00286 6/01/25 426731   202506 320-57200-34700                                     *            6,390.33

JUN FIELD MANAGEMENT SRVC
6/01/25 426731   202506 320-57200-34400                                     *            3,341.33

JUN OFFICE ADMIN/EVENTS
6/01/25 426731   202506 320-57200-34200                                     *            2,505.58

JUN JANITORIAL SERVICES
6/01/25 426731   202506 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,806.34

JUN POOL MAINTENANCE
6/01/25 426731   202506 320-57200-46700                                     *              668.17

JUN WASTE DISPOSAL SRVCS
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                  15,711.75 002774

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00334 6/05/25 8320     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               58.49

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                58.49 002775

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00030 6/01/25 325      202506 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,974.58

JUN MANAGEMENT FEES
6/01/25 325      202506 310-51300-35100                                     *              143.58

JUN INFO TECH
6/01/25 325      202506 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .78

OFFICE SUPPLIES
6/01/25 325      202506 310-51300-42000                                     *               48.83

POSTAGE
6/01/25 325      202506 310-51300-42500                                     *              167.25

COPIES
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,335.02 002776

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BC   -BRANDY CREEK- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/02/25          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       BRANDY CREEK - GENERAL FUND

BANK C BRANDY - HANCOCK GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/16/25 00414 5/26/25 611801   202505 320-57200-49400                                     *              375.00
ENTERTAIN MEMORIAL DAY

JOHN HUBBS                                                        375.00 002777
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00414 5/30/25 611802   202505 320-57200-49400                                     *              150.00

5/30 ENTERTIANMENT
JOHN HUBBS                                                        150.00 002778

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00019 5/01/25 271072B  202505 320-57200-46800                                     *              965.00

MAY LAKE MAINTENANCE
THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              965.00 002779

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00286 5/31/25 427085   202505 320-57200-34600                                     *            4,165.62

POOL MONITOR
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                   4,165.62 002780

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00044 5/01/25 05012025 202505 320-57200-42000                                     *               54.95

MAY INTERNET
WAVEFLY                                                            54.95 002781

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00044 6/01/25 06012025 202506 320-57200-42000                                     *               54.95

JUN INTERTNET
WAVEFLY                                                            54.95 002782

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/16/25 00271 6/01/25 928387   202506 320-57200-46100                                     *           11,513.70

JUN LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                          11,513.70 002783

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00334 6/11/25 8340     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               76.43

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                76.43 002784

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00334 6/17/25 8352     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               38.03

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                38.03 002785

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00334 6/17/25 8355     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *                 .36

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                  .36 002786

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00400 6/17/25 2025-718 202506 310-51300-31100                                     *            1,025.00

JUN ENGINEERING SERVICES
DOMINION ENGINEERING GROUP INC                                  1,025.00 002787

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00227 3/20/25 7230073A 202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               93.09

MAR PEST HUFFNER HILL CIR
PESTBEAR                                                           93.09 002788

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BC   -BRANDY CREEK- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/02/25          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       BRANDY CREEK - GENERAL FUND

BANK C BRANDY - HANCOCK GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 6/24/25 00019 6/01/25 279239B  202506 320-57200-46800                                     *              965.00
JUN LAKE MAINTENANCE

THE LAKE DOCTORS INC                                              965.00 002789
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00286 5/31/25 427130   202505 320-57200-51000                                     *               22.00

ENVATO - SOFTWARE
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                      22.00 002790

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00271 5/01/25 903421   202505 320-57200-46100                                     *           11,513.70

MAY LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                          11,513.70 002791

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 6/24/25 00271 6/10/25 934078   202505 320-57200-46300                                     *              662.00

MAY IRRIGATION REPAIRS
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                             662.00 002792

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/25 00372 6/25/25 3583534  202505 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,305.86

MAY GENERAL SERVICES
KUTAK ROCK LLP                                                  3,305.86 002793

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/03/25 00286 7/01/25 427253   202507 320-57200-34700                                     *            6,390.33

JUL FIELD MANAGEMENT SRVC
7/01/25 427253   202507 320-57200-34400                                     *            3,341.33

JUL OFFICE ADMIN/EVENTS
7/01/25 427253   202507 320-57200-34200                                     *            2,505.58

JUL JANITORIAL SERVICES
7/01/25 427253   202507 320-57200-46200                                     *            2,806.34

JUL POOL MAINTENANCE
7/01/25 427253   202507 320-57200-46700                                     *              668.17

JUL WASTE DISPOSAL SRVCS
VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                  15,711.75 002794

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00292 7/02/25 07122025 202507 320-57200-49400                                     *              300.00

7/12 20FT WATERSLIDE
BOUNCERS SLIDES AND MORE INC                                      300.00 002795

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00334 6/26/25 8379     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               13.49

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                13.49 002796

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00334 6/26/25 8380     202506 320-57200-46600                                     *               27.89

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                27.89 002797

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00334 7/02/25 8396     202507 320-57200-46600                                     *               65.83

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
CRONIN ACE HARDWARE                                                65.83 002798

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BC   -BRANDY CREEK- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/02/25          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       BRANDY CREEK - GENERAL FUND

BANK C BRANDY - HANCOCK GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/10/25 00030 7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-34000                                     *            4,974.58
JUL MANAGEMENT FEES

7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-35100                                     *              143.58
JUL INFO TECH

7/01/25 327      202507 320-57200-34300                                     *               50.00
JUL WEBSITE ADMIN

7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-51000                                     *                 .39
OFFICE SUPPLIES

7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-42000                                     *              116.71
POSTAGE

7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-42500                                     *                4.20
COPIES

7/01/25 327      202507 310-51300-41000                                     *               24.97
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                5,314.43 002799
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00201 6/23/25 20117    202506 320-57200-49000                                     *              650.00

DROP 2 PINE TREES
TAYLOR TREE SERVICES, INC                                         650.00 002800

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00044 7/01/25 07012025 202507 320-57200-42000                                     *               54.95

JUL INTERNET
WAVEFLY                                                            54.95 002801

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/10/25 00271 7/01/25 946666   202507 320-57200-46100                                     *           11,513.70

JUL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE
YELLOWSTONE LANDSCAPE                                          11,513.70 002802

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00033 5/21/25 391607   202505 320-57200-46600                                     *              135.00

SOFTWARE INSTALL
ATLANTIC SECURITY                                                 135.00 002803

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00368 7/02/25 372733   202506 310-51300-32200                                     *            3,685.00

FY24 ANNUAL AUDIT
BERGER TOOMBS ELAM GAINES & FRANK                               3,685.00 002804

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00401 7/08/25 90013713 202507 320-57200-46600                                     *              300.00

CLEAN PH2 AMENITY CENTER
STORM CLEAN INC                                                   300.00 002805

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00227 7/08/25 7375027  202507 320-57200-46600                                     *               63.00

JUL MOSQUITO CONTROL
PESTBEAR                                                           63.00 002806

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 7/17/25 00341 7/01/25 13129562 202507 320-57200-46250                                     *            1,549.51

JUL POOL CHEMICALS
POOLSURE                                                        1,549.51 002807

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

BC   -BRANDY CREEK- BPEREGRINO



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  9/02/25          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 06/01/2025 - 07/31/2025 ***       BRANDY CREEK - GENERAL FUND

BANK C BRANDY - HANCOCK GF

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 7/17/25 00286 6/30/25 427299   202506 320-57200-34600                                     *            9,509.16
POOL MONITOR

VESTA PROPERTY SERVICES, INC.                                   9,509.16 002808
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK C                107,835.93

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              107,835.93

BC   -BRANDY CREEK- BPEREGRINO














































































































	09.10.25 Agenda
	III.	Approval of the Minutes of the July 9, 2025, Meeting
	V. A. Lake Doctors for Aquatic Maintenance
	V. B. C Buss Enterprises for Pool Refinishing Services
	VIII. C. Manager – Discussion of Fiscal Year 2026 CDD Goals and Objectives
	VIII. D. 1. Operations Manager Report
	VIII. D. 2. Yellowstone Report
	VIII. D. 3. Lake Doctors Report
	VIII. E. 1. Amenity Manager Report
	X. A.	Balance Sheet & Income Statement as of July 31, 2025
	X. B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	X. C. Check Register



